
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, June 7, 2017 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the May 17, 2017 Meeting 

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 10404–10406 S. Walker Road – Town of Turtle 
Review and consideration of a Two-Lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
10404-10406 S. Walker Rd in the Town of Turtle 

4. Certified Survey Map – 3022 Ford Street  
Review and consideration of a Four-Lot Certified Survey Map for 3022 Ford Street in the 
City of Beloit 

5. Certified Survey Map – 1520 Madison Road 
Review and consideration of a Two-Lot Certified Survey Map for 1520 Madison Road in the 
City of Beloit 

6. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
 

7. Adjournment 

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Amber in the Planning and Building Services 
Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  June 2, 2017 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 

Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, May 17, 2017 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100  State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:01pm. Commissioners Weeden, 
Faragher, Ruster, Finnegan, Tinder were present. Commissioners Johnson, Haynes, and 
Councilor De Forest were absent.  
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the May 3, 2017 Meeting 
Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the minutes from the May 3, 2017 meeting. 
Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  
 

3. Conditional Use Permit – 2667 Prairie Avenue – Car Wash 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Limited 
Vehicle Service use (car wash) on the property located at 2667 Prairie Avenue 

Mr. Drew Pennington, Planning and Building Services Director, presented the staff report 
and recommendation.  

Gerardo Castro, 1223 Ninth Street, stated that he would comply with everything when the 
City approves the opening of the Car Wash. 

Commissioner Weeden asked how they were going to dry the cars. Mr. Castro stated they 
are drying the cars by hand with shammy towels after the cars are rinsed off.  

Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the resolution. Commissioner Weeden seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  

4. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
The School District consultant team will be reaching out to Kolak neighborhood to engage 
them and start envisioning a process for redevelopment of the Kolak site.  
 
SLATS is looking for volunteers to sit on a Bike and Pedestrian Plan Committee, with a 
handful of meetings over the next six months during day times. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The City Council gave a first reading of the Zoning Map Amendment from R-1A to C-3 for 
the property at 3375 Prairie Avenue.  
 

5. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:13pm. 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 

 
 



June 7 Staff Report 3, CSM-2017-06, 10404-10406 S. Walker Road (TOT) 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: June 7, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CSM-2017-06 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. 
 

Owner: Mecca & Austin Location: 10404 & 10406 S. Walker 
Road, Town of Turtle 
 

Existing Zoning: AE & RR (Town) Existing Land Use: Rural Residential CSM Area: 10.9 Acres 
 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
In accordance with Section 12.05 of the Subdivision Ordinance, the applicant has submitted an Application for Review of 
a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 10404 & 10406 S. Walker Road 
in the Town of Turtle within the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The intent of this CSM is to move the lot line between these parcels approximately 75 feet to the west. 
 Proposed Lot 1 will be enlarged to 3.045 acres and proposed Lot 2 will be reduced to 7.818 acres. 
 There is an existing ingress/egress easement for a shared driveway over a 50-foot strip of Lot 2 along Walker 

Road for the benefit of Lot 1. 
 Both lots include existing single-family dwellings served by private wells and septic systems. 
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments or concerns. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan: 
This proposed CSM lies outside the limits of the City’s Future Land Use Map. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 2-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the properties located at 10404 & 10406 S. Walker Road in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and provide the Planning & Building 
Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31, 2017. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution. 
 



June 7 Staff Report 3, CSM-2017-06, 10404-10406 S. Walker Road (TOT) 



June 7 Staff Report 3, CSM-2017-06, 10404-10406 S. Walker Road (TOT) 

 



June 7 Staff Report 3, CSM-2017-06, 10404-10406 S. Walker Road (TOT) 

 

 
 

 



June 7 Staff Report 3, CSM-2017-06, 10404-10406 S. Walker Road (TOT) 

 



June 7 Staff Report 3, CSM-2017-06, 10404-10406 S. Walker Road (TOT) 

 

 
 



June 7 Staff Report 3, CSM-2017-06, 10404-10406 S. Walker Road (TOT)  

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 

10404 & 10406 S. WALKER ROAD IN THE TOWN OF TURTLE 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 

Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 

subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 

10404 & 10406 S. Walker Road in the Town of Turtle is located within the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 

two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

Lots 1 & 2 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 1305981 as recorded in 

Volume 19 on Pages 330-331 of Certified Survey Maps, being a part of the SE ¼ 

of the SE ¼ of Section 22, T. 1N., R. 13E. of the 4
th

 P.M., Town of Turtle, Rock 

County, Wisconsin. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Plan Commission of the 

City of Beloit does hereby approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties 

located at 10404 & 10406 S. Walker Road in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following 

condition: 

 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and provide 

the Planning & Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by 

December 31, 2017. 

 

Adopted this 7
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

         

 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen 

Community Development Director 

 



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: June 7, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CSM-2017-07 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: KDN Hospitality LLC 
 

Location: 3022 Ford Street 

Zoning: C-3, Community Commercial 
& MRO, Milwaukee Road Overlay 

Existing Land Use: Vacant Total CSM Area: 12 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 4-Lot Certified 
Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 3022 Ford Street in the City of Beloit. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of 
the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of 
land within the City where there is no dedication of land to the City. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The intent of the proposed CSM is to subdivide the former lumberyard property in advance of a proposed 
redevelopment project involving the construction of a 6-story Holiday Inn Express hotel. The proposed CSM will 
also create three additional lots for future development potential. The existing buildings will be demolished. 

 Note that the proposed CSM identifies two sections of land along the northern and eastern perimeter that will be 
acquired by WisDOT for the reconstruction and realignment of the I-90/39/43 interchange. 

 The hotel will be constructed on proposed Lot 2, which is 3.3 acres and includes frontage on Ford Street and the 
interstate. Planning staff is reviewing site plans related to the construction of the hotel on Lot 2. 

 In order to address the unique access challenges associated with this site, the CSM reserves a 66-foot cross-
access and utility easement over the planned Ford Street driveway area on Lot 2, and reserves that area for a 
future right-of-way (see note “A”). The CSM also reserves a 66-foot utility easement over the shared lot line 
between Lots 3-4, and reserves the same area for a future right-of-way connection to the unimproved Ford Street 
right-of-way (see note “B”). 

 Proposed Lot 1 is 2.3 acres and includes frontage on Ford Street and the interstate. Proposed Lot 3 is 4.5 acres 
and includes frontage on the unimproved section of Ford Street and the interstate, but will have access via the 
cross-access easement and driveway over Lot 2. Proposed Lot 4 is 1.9 acres and includes frontage on the 
unimproved section of Ford Street, but will have access via the cross-access easement and driveway over Lot 2. 

 All of the proposed lots comply with the minimum development standards in the C-3 zoning district. 
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any objections. Alliant 

Energy has requested electrical easements to be shown on the final CSM. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses for the subject property. The proposed CSM 
is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goals #3 and #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 4-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the property located at 3022 Ford Street in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The final CSM shall include the easements requested by Alliant Energy. 
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2017. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution. 



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   

 



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   

 



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   

 



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   

 



June 7 Staff Report 4, CSM-2017-07, 3022 Ford Street   

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A FOUR-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

3022 FORD STREET 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 

Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 

subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached four-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 3022 

Ford Street, containing 12.0 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of 

Beloit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 

four-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

PART OF THE SW ¼ OF THE SE ¼ AND PART OF THE SE ¼ OF THE SE ¼ 

OF SECTION 20, AND PART OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NE ¼  OF SECTION 29, 

T. 1 N., R. 13 E. OF THE 4
TH

 P.M., CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, 

WISCONSIN. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached four-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

property located at 3022 Ford Street, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The final CSM shall include the easements requested by Alliant Energy. 

2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 

31, 2017. 

 

Adopted this 7
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

  _ 

 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen, 

Community Development Director 

 



June 7, Staff Report, CSM-2017-08, 1520 Madison Road- 2 Lot   

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: June 7, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 5 
 

File Number: CSM-2017-08 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman and Co., 
Inc. 

Owner: Premier Oil Holdings, LLC. 
 

Location: 1520 Madison Road 

Existing Zoning: C-3, Community 
Commercial District 

Existing Land Use: Retail Total CSM Area: 108,262 SF (2.50 
AC) 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
R.H. Batterman and Company, Inc., on behalf of Premier Oil Holdings, LLC., has submitted an Application for the Review 
of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 1520 Madison Road. According 
to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject 
any minor subdivision of land within the City of Beloit where there is no dedication of land to the City. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 This 108,262 Sq. ft. (2.5 acres) lot is currently zoned C-3, Community Commercial District, and the zoning for 
both proposed lots will not change when divided. The intent of this CSM is to create a separate parcel for 
commercial development. 

 There will be a cross access & parking easement provided between the two proposed lots. 
 Lot 1 will have 340.30 feet of frontage on Madison Road and will be approximately 1.21 acres.  
 Lot 2 will have 185.45 feet of frontage on Madison Road and 408.84 feet of frontage on Whipple Street, and  will 

be approximately 1.30 acres.  
 Lot 2 will contain a 12’ wide water service easement, 12’ sanitary service easement, and 10’ wide sanitary sewer 

easement. The locations of these easements are approximate. 
 An address will have to be assigned to the newly created parcel. 
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any objections. 
 The application and proposed CSM are attached for your review. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses for the subject property. The proposed CSM 
is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goals #3 and #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 2-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the property located at 1520 Madison Road, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2017. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution 
  



June 7, Staff Report, CSM-2017-08, 1520 Madison Road- 2 Lot   

  



June 7, Staff Report, CSM-2017-08, 1520 Madison Road- 2 Lot   

 
 

  



June 7, Staff Report, CSM-2017-08, 1520 Madison Road- 2 Lot   



June 7, Staff Report, CSM-2017-08, 1520 Madison Road- 2 Lot   

 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

1520 MADISON ROAD 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 

Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 

subdivision of land within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 1520 

Madison Road, containing 2.5 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of 

Beloit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 

two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

OF PART OF LOT 34 OF McKEARN’S SECOND ADDITION AND PART OF 

VACATED MICHAEL DRIVE BEING PART OF THE SW ¼  OF THE NW ¼ , 

PART OF THE SE  ¼ OF THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 27, T. 1 N., R. 12 E., OF 

THE 4
TH

 P.M., CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

property located at 1520 Madison Road, subject to the following condition: 

 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 

31, 2017. 

 

Adopted this 7
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

  _ 

 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen, 

Community Development Director 

 


